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          1  RULES, PRIVILEGES AND ELECTIONS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE:  Good morning.

          3  My name is Leroy Comrie.  I am privileged to be the

          4  Chairman on the Committee on Rules, Privileges and

          5  Elections.  Today we have before us six candidates

          6  for our review.  We will call the candidates in the

          7  following order:  First we will hear from Mr.

          8  Kellner, then Mr. Olcott, followed by Ms. Dent, then

          9  Mr. Alam, Ms. Kalmus and, finally, Ms. Villanueva.

         10                 We have -- Well okay, I was trying to

         11  be brief.  We have Mr. Douglas Arthur Kellner,

         12  registered Democrat from New York County being

         13  recommended for re- appointment by the Council as a

         14  Member of the New York City Board of Elections.  He

         15  is eligible to serve for a four- year term that

         16  begins on January 1, 2005, and ends December 31,

         17  2008.

         18                 A Certificate of Recommendation

         19  referencing Mr. Kellner -- this new script is

         20  strange -- was filed at the office of the City Clerk

         21  on September 27, 2004, at 11:36 a.m.  The

         22  Chairperson of the New York County Democratic

         23  Committee and the Chairperson of the Executive

         24  Committee of the New York County Democratic

         25  Committee signed this document titled Election
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          2  Commissioner Certification.  Here. Right.

          3                 Mr. Kellner can you raise your right

          4  hand to be sworn in please?

          5                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          6  swear and affirm the testimony you are about to give

          7  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

          8                 MR. KELLNER: I do.

          9                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         10  your name for the record.

         11                 MR. KELLNER: Douglas Kellner.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

         13  witness is sworn.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Good morning Mr.

         15  Kellner.  Good to see you.  I'll introduce the

         16  Members that are here.  We are joined by Council

         17  Member Yvette Clarke, Council Member Robert Jackson

         18  and Council Member David Weprin.  We have two other

         19  Committee Meetings that are going on today and it's

         20  a crazy kind of day, but we're glad that you are

         21  here.

         22                 Can you just provide us with a brief

         23  synopsis of your understanding of the duties and

         24  functions of your role as a Commissioner with the

         25  Board of Elections.
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          2                 MR. KELLNER: Yes sir. The ten

          3  Commissioners of the Board of Elections sort of act

          4  as the Board of Directors for the Agency that the

          5  Commissioners meet weekly and make the overall

          6  policy for the operations of the Board of Elections.

          7    In addition the Commissioners provide at the

          8  Hearings on challenges for ballot access and then

          9  the Commissioners also serve a function in

         10  supervising the staff of the borough officers, in

         11  their own borough.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: How do feel your

         13  role as Commissioner?

         14                 MR. KELLNER: Well I have been mainly

         15  concerned with making sure that the Agency operates

         16  efficiently and transparently. And, when I say

         17  transparently, that everyone is aware of how

         18  decisions are made in the Agency and that the public

         19  can fully audit the political process that goes into

         20  determining what candidates get on the ballot and

         21  how elections are administered.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Did you

         23  want to make a statement, Council Member Jackson?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you Mr.

         25  Chair.  I'm here this morning in order to support
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          2  the nomination of Doug Kellner as to continue as the

          3  Commissioner of the Board of Elections.

          4                 I've know Doug for several years in

          5  many capacities and let me just tell you as an

          6  individual, as an attorney- at- law, he's

          7  represented many, many people in New York City and

          8  dealing with housing disputes and all the reports

          9  that I have received from tenant leaders and other

         10  advocates indicate he's an excellent attorney, does

         11  a fine job on behalf of the tenants in New York

         12  City.  So I'm proud of that.  And also in dealing

         13  with Doug as a Commissioner, I have always found him

         14  to be honest, forthright and all of the questions

         15  that I have put forward to him regarding election

         16  matters, he's always been very, very responsive.

         17                 As a Council Member representing

         18  Northern Manhattan, I strongly support the re-

         19  nomination and confirmation of Doug Kellner as a

         20  Commissioner.  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Council

         22  Member Jackson.  On that note, and since we're

         23  rushed for time.  Do you think we're ready for

         24  Tuesday, Mr. Kellner?

         25                 MR. KELLNER: I do.  I believe that
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          2  the Board, particularly under the leadership of our

          3  new Executive Director, John Ravits (phonetic), has

          4  taken preparation very seriously.  It is a difficult

          5  operation, particularly in a presidential election

          6  year because of the large voter turnout that we hope

          7  will occur. And the logistical issue of recruiting

          8  and training 30 thousand poll workers because those

          9  are the people our citizens see when they go to vote

         10  and the task of being a poll worker has become

         11  increasingly complex as the election laws have

         12  become more complex and training those people and

         13  getting good people in place is the number one

         14  problem that the Board faces.  I think that they

         15  have made a number of advances in the last years,

         16  although there is many improvements that we could

         17  still make.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Did you vote for

         19  the sensor latches the first time that vote came

         20  down?

         21                 MR. KELLNER: Well as you know

         22  Councilman, I lead the fight to get the sensor

         23  latches reattached.  I was the one who discovered

         24  that these machines actually had that capability by

         25  reading the old Shupe (phonetic) manuals that had
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          2  been laying around and I started asking what is

          3  this, and led that fight.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  You

          5  should take full credit for that because you got me

          6  started and we got the Council started.

          7                 MR. KELLNER: Thank you.  The issue

          8  now, that's the partisan issue at the Board of

          9  Elections, is the affidavit ballot envelopes.  For

         10  years, I along with other good government groups

         11  have been arguing that we should have a voter

         12  registration form as part of the affidavit ballot

         13  envelope, so that if somebody is not registered to

         14  vote, at least they will become registered --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: At that point.

         16                 MR. KELLNER: -- At that point. And

         17  now, they don't become registered.  They vote by

         18  affidavit ballot, if they are not registered, their

         19  vote is no good.  We do send them another

         20  registration form, but unless they fill out that

         21  form and return it, they remain unregistered.

         22                 In the rest of the State, almost all

         23  of the other Counties in the State do follow that

         24  procedure of having the registration form as part of

         25  the affidavit ballot envelop.  But the five
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          2  Republican Commissioners have been blocking that in

          3  New York City so that our own voters are

          4  disadvantaged through that procedural roadblock that

          5  the Republicans have imposed.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Right.  Thank

          7  you.

          8                 Just a few housekeeping matters,

          9  because we have to move on.  I just want to thank

         10  you for bringing that up and bringing that to the

         11  Committee's attention.  I think that was just about

         12  two years ago and I'm glad now that the Board of

         13  Elections has gotten those safety latches back on

         14  all the machines for this election.  I think that's

         15  an important and good government effort that will

         16  ensure that people who want to vote, do get an

         17  opportunity to vote before they leave the machine.

         18                 Just two housekeeping matters.  You

         19  are partner in the law firm of Kellner, Chehebar and

         20  Deveney.  Your firm has reported to the Council that

         21  they do not have any business or litigation that

         22  involves the Board of Elections.  When you were

         23  reappointed to the Board of Elections in '96, you

         24  contacted the Conflicts of Interest Board in writing

         25  for an opinion as to whether your firms business
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          2  activities would raise any conflict of interest

          3  question.  Do you intend to continue to comply with

          4  the advice provided by the Conflicts Board?

          5                 MR. KELLNER: Yes sir.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: During our

          7  background review two open fire department

          8  violations returnable to New York City Environmental

          9  Control Board were detected.  Both violations

         10  totalling five thousand are in default.  It's clear

         11  that these violations -- no, sorry, back up -- These

         12  violations were issued when you were appointed as a

         13  receiver of a building in Manhattan that you are no

         14  longer a receiver for.  From looking at the files it

         15  was clear that the violations never reached you

         16  because they were improperly addressed.  We

         17  recognize that you recently visited the Control

         18  Board to vacate the default. Can you please advise

         19  the Council Appointment Investigation Unit when that

         20  matter is finally resolved?

         21                 MR. KELLNER: I would be happy to do

         22  that.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         24                 We can move forward to the next

         25  candidate, if no other Member has questions.  Thank
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          2  you very much.

          3                 MR. KELLNER: Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you for

          5  coming in this morning, Mr. Kellner and thank you

          6  for your desire to serve.  We'll move now to Mr.

          7  Richard Melville Olcott.  Am I saying that right?

          8                 MR. OLCOTT: Yes.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you. A

         10  resident of Manhattan, who is a candidate for

         11  appointment by the Mayor to the Landmarks

         12  Preservation Commission.  If the Council gives its

         13  advice and consent, Mr. Olcott will be eligible to

         14  serve for the remainder of a three- year term that

         15  will expire on June 28, 2006.  You will succeed Ms.

         16  Meredith Kane.  You previously served on this

         17  Commission from 1996 to early 2004.  Can you raise

         18  your right hand and be sworn in?

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         20  swear and affirm the testimony you are about to give

         21  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         22                 MR. OLCOTT: I do.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         24  your name for the record.

         25                 MR. OLCOTT: Richard Melville Olcott.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

          3  witness is sworn.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you have an

          5  opening statement?

          6                 MR. OLCOTT: I do have.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  Can you

          8  also just give us a brief synopsis of your

          9  understanding of the duties of the Agency and what

         10  you feel your office will allow you to do as a

         11  Commissioner for Landmarks Preservation Commission.

         12                 MR. OLCOTT: Well, as you are not

         13  doubt aware the Commission is composed of

         14  architects, historians, land use attorneys and

         15  members of clergy and I am one of the architect

         16  members, one of three on this Commission.  And as I

         17  did in the past, that is the realm of expertise I

         18  would bring to the Commission.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: You served on the

         20  Commission before.  What major landmark effort can

         21  you remember that you worked on or were proud of or

         22  any reverse that were most controversial during your

         23  term?

         24                 MR. OLCOTT: I think I'm very proud of

         25  in particular the designations that we've done.
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          2  There has been a real uptake in the number of

          3  designations, in particular in designations in

          4  boroughs other than Manhattan, which is something

          5  that I continue to believe is probably the most

          6  important thing the Commission should do.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  And this

          8  is the time unfortunately I would like to ask you

          9  some other questions about your opinion on Two

         10  Columbus Circle and some other projects but I would

         11  hope that when you do go back to the Commission, and

         12  I'm sure you will, that you make sure that they are

         13   -- and they have been pretty consistent, I won't

         14  say they are not, about the way that they have the

         15  public hearings on different projects so that they

         16  can allow as much public participation as possible.

         17  And I see Diane -- I was wondering why Diane and the

         18  Commissioner were here. There is so many things

         19  going on today, I thought they belonged in the Land

         20  Use room, but they are here for you.

         21                 So, welcome back to the Landmarks

         22  Preservation. That is one of my subcommittees that

         23  I'm on, so I hope to see you at a subcommittee

         24  meeting, although Diane normally comes and I'm

         25  banking on the gentlemen's name that I'm looking at.
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          2                 MR. GOVERMAN: Mark Goverman

          3  (phonetic).

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mark Goverman,

          5  sorry Mark. The Landmarks Preservation is the

          6  Commission that I think is important to the history

          7  and beauty of this City.  I hope that it can

          8  continue to move forward to protect those things in

          9  our City that we most treasure.

         10                 Bob, have you got a question?

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Yes, a quick

         12  question.  Is see that you reside in the Landmark

         13  building?  Is that correct?

         14                 MR. OLCOTT: I live actually in a loft

         15  building in a landmark district in SoHo.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, in a

         17  landmark district in SoHo.  And I represent Northern

         18  Manhattan, the Hamilton Heights Historic District.

         19  But I know that recently within the past couple of

         20  months, there's two issues that have been in the

         21  public's view and at the recent hearings and that is

         22  Two Columbus Circle and the church up in Harlem.

         23                 I just wanted to know about what is

         24  your position on whether or not buildings like that

         25  should even have a hearing in front of the Landmark
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          2  Preservation Commission.  Because the issue in this

          3  particular case is they haven't even had a hearing

          4  to determine whether they are Landmark status.  Do

          5  you have an opinion on that?

          6                 MR. OLCOTT: Well, I think that's

          7  really actually a matter for the Chairman to decide.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Oh, the

          9  Chairman of the Board?

         10                 MR. OLCOTT: Of the Landmarks

         11  Commission.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Why do you

         13  feel it's the position of the Chairman and not the

         14  Board?

         15                 MR. OLCOTT: To decide what comes up

         16  for a hearing?

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Right.  Why

         18  do you feel that way?

         19                 MR. OLCOTT: That's the way it works,

         20  really.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Is that the

         22  way it works?

         23                 MR. OLCOTT: Yes.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: So you mean

         25   --
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          2                 MR. OLCOTT: I don't schedule or set

          3  the agenda for the hearing.  I simply go to the

          4  hearing.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Well, I'm not

          6  talking about setting the agenda.  One thing.  Is

          7  the Board a policy making Board?  Or what is it,

          8  it's like a rubber stamp or a policy making Board?

          9                 MR. OLCOTT: It is a policy making

         10  Board.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Okay.  So

         12  you're telling me that the Chairman sets the agenda

         13  and determines everything?  Is that what you are

         14  saying to me?

         15                 MR. OLCOTT: I don't make the decision

         16  as to what should be to come up for a hearing or

         17  not.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: I'm sorry, I

         19  didn't ask you whether or not you make the decision,

         20  I asked you your opinion about whether or not

         21  projects should have a hearing to be considered

         22  whether or not they are landmark status.  That's

         23  most different than making the decision.

         24                 MR. OLCOTT: I am actually not

         25  familiar with the church in Harlem, actually I've
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          2  been out of the country for six months, but I would

          3  certainly make it my business to learn all about it

          4  in the immediate future.  Two Columbus Circle I can

          5  tell you I am very familiar as an architect with the

          6  work of Edward Dural Stone.  I think he is an

          7  interesting architect.  I don't think that building

          8  is among his most interesting buildings. That's my

          9  personal opinion.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Finally I

         11  just say that I understand that the Chair is the

         12  Chair.  But, if it's only up to the Chair, then why

         13  do we have a Board?  I just leave you with that food

         14  for thought.

         15                 MR. OLCOTT: Okay.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Speaker Miller is

         18  here and I know he would like to vote on the

         19  candidates, and also Council Member Perkins because

         20  there are other Committee Meetings that are going

         21  on.  Speaker Miller.

         22                 SPEAKER MILLER: I vote aye.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I also vote

         24  aye.  I want to, this is such an outstanding group

         25  of individuals I'm going to not take the opportunity
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          2  to flatter them all but there is one in particular

          3  however, that I must give some attention to because

          4  of our long standing relationship in government.

          5                 So I want to especially acknowledge

          6  Commissioner Doug Kellner, of the New York City

          7  Board of Elections for the outstanding contributions

          8  he has made to that Board over the years and his

          9  efforts to bringing it up to a standard that is

         10  commendable for all of us in Manhattan and in the

         11  City.  But of course, you know, I can't say enough

         12  about the rest as well.  Thank you very much.  I

         13  vote aye on all.

         14                 MR. KELLNER: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  We

         16  have been joined by Council Member Reyna from

         17  Brooklyn and Council Member Provenzano is here and

         18  there are other members bouncing back and forth.

         19                 Just some housekeeping matters Mr.

         20  Olcott.  We understand that you may be moving in the

         21  near future?

         22                 MR. OLCOTT:  (Microphone not turned

         23  on)

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Oh thanks a lot.

         25  Excellent Investigation's Unit.  They know
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          2  everything about you and I want to thank our

          3  Investigation's Unit, two of which members are

          4  subway Aficionados, so they went down to the

          5  centennial celebration and we are gratefully

          6  allowing them to do so because of the excellent work

          7  that they did in preparing all the materials today.

          8  We didn't want them to miss that once in a hundred

          9  year opportunity.  That's for sure.

         10                 Anyhow, the Chair of the Board

         11  confirmed that you still serve as a Board Member of

         12  the Good Deal Realty Corporation, the Coop

         13  Corporation that owns the building in which you

         14  reside. Records show that your residence, 141

         15  Wooster Street, New York, New York 100012 is not a

         16  landmark, but lies within the SoHo landmark

         17  district.  Good Deal Reality Corporation is required

         18  to obtain prior approval from LPC before undertaking

         19  certain types of alterations or improvements to the

         20  building.

         21                 Provided that you refuse yourself

         22  from consideration of any matter involving the City

         23  and as a member of LPC from any matter involving

         24  consideration of your cooperative apartment

         25  building.  We see no bars you continuing to serve on
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          2  the Board.  Do you intend to follow these

          3  prescriptions?

          4                 MR. OLCOTT: Yes I do.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Mr. Olcott, you

          6  are the general area partner for the firm Polshek

          7  Partnership Architects, LLP?  The architects advised

          8  the Council that current projects, which are or will

          9  involve review by Landmarks Preservation Commission,

         10  are the firm's efforts for the Museum of the City of

         11  New York and also they work in the restoration of

         12  the Sarah Delano Roosevelt House for Hunter College.

         13                 Your firm stated that you are not

         14  involved in either of these projects.  Further, your

         15  firm has represented that your share of profits will

         16  not include any profit earned on these projects.

         17  The Landmarks Commission notified the Council that a

         18  search of their files detected only one open

         19  application for the Sarah Delano Roosevelt Memorial

         20  House, at 47- 49 East 65th Street. There are no open

         21  applications considering the Museum of the City of

         22  New York.

         23                 On October 21st, 2004, you wrote to

         24  the Conflicts of Interest Board seeking guidance

         25  considering your affiliation with your firm.  I
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          2  understand you have informed the Board that assuming

          3  you are appointed to serve on the Landmarks

          4  Commission, it is your intention to refuse yourself

          5  from any discussions of votes regarding current or

          6  future projects that your firm has before the LPC,

          7  and that you will not serve as partner in charge of

          8  any project that may come before the Commission.

          9                 In addition, you advised the Board

         10  that you would abide by the conditions required with

         11  respect to sharing in fees earned by the firm

         12  relating to representation of finance before the

         13  Landmarks Commission.  Is my understanding of your

         14  representations correct?

         15                 MR. OLCOTT: Yes it is.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Upon

         17  receiving the Board's ruling, do you intend to abide

         18  by it?

         19                 MR. OLCOTT: I do, yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Can you hear him

         21  on the tape?

         22                 Will you provide our Appointments

         23  Unit with a copy of the Board's decision upon

         24  receipt?

         25                 MR. OLCOTT: Yes, I will.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  And

          3  that's it, unless anyone else has any questions.

          4  Mr. Olcott, I want to thank you.  I do want you to

          5  consider what Councilman Jackson said about the tail

          6  wagging the dog.

          7                 MR. OLCOTT: I will.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Next

          9  is Ms. Virginia Michels Dent, resident of Queens,

         10  Candidate for reconfirmation by the Council as a

         11  member of the Soil and Water Conservation District

         12  Board of Directors.  She is eligible to complete the

         13  remainder of a three- year term that began on

         14  January 3, 2004, and ends on December 31st, 2006.

         15  She has been serving in a holdover capacity since

         16  her previous term expired on December 31, 2003.  Can

         17  you raise your right hand to be sworn in please, Ms.

         18  Dent?

         19                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         20  swear and affirm the testimony you are about to give

         21  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         22                 MS. DENT: I do.

         23                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         24  your name for the record.

         25                 MS. DENT: Virginia Michels Dent.
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          2                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

          3  witness is sworn.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Ms.

          5  Dent.  We also have been joined by Eugenia Flatow,

          6  the Chair of the Soil and Water Board.  Good

          7  morning.  Thanks for coming in today.  Do you have

          8  an opening statement, Ms Dent, or anything you want

          9  to share with us this morning?

         10                 MS. DENT: No.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you want to

         12  give us a perspective on or a synopsis of what you

         13  think your understanding is of the functions and

         14  duties of your position on the Soil and Water Board?

         15                 MS. DENT: Well the Soil and Water

         16  Conservation District has been very involved in soil

         17  survey and a soil scientific base.  Our mission is

         18  to conserve our waterfront and to improve water

         19  quality, to prevent soil erosion and sediment

         20  damage, to preserve and enhance our natural

         21  resources, to abate sources of pollution, to protect

         22  our public lands and to promote the health and

         23  safety of the general welfare of the City.

         24                 We have a Stewardship Program, in

         25  which we assist civic and environmental groups to
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          2  adopt certain waterways.  We have a soil survey,

          3  which is the City's first and a national model, in

          4  redirecting soil science to focus on urban soil.  We

          5  have an environathon, which is a local leg in

          6  national high school environment and we are an

          7  active participant in the New York City Urban

          8  Resources Partnership, which is a Federal

          9  Partnership Program for underserved communities.

         10                 There are many, many things that the

         11  Soil and Water Conservation District Board does.

         12  And it does it in cooperation with partners.  Let's

         13  see, New York City Department of Environmental

         14  Protection, the New York City Department of Parks

         15  and Recreation, the Natural Resources Group, the New

         16  York City Soil and Water Conservation Committee, the

         17  USDA United States Department of Agricultural

         18  Natural Resources.  I can't tell you how many

         19  Agencies we work with.  I could go on and on, but I

         20  think that serves us.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Any

         22  questions for Ms. Dent?  No.  Okay.

         23                 It's just a housekeeping matter.  Ms.

         24  Dent, you and your husband jointly file your

         25  personal income tax returns?
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          2                 MS. DENT: Yes.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: The United States

          4  Internal Revenue Service advised the Council's

          5  Investigation Unit that as of October 19th, 2004,

          6  you have $2 thousand personal income tax return that

          7  was on extension until October 15, 2004, still have

          8  not been filed.  The New York State Department of

          9  Taxation of Finance also reported that they had no

         10  record of you filing the return for 2003 and no

         11  record of an extension.  Your husband has

         12  represented to the Council that he will file your

         13  2003 statement City and Federal Return on or before

         14  October 31st, 2004.

         15                 MS. DENT: Right.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Will you please

         17  affirm his statement to the Council Investigators

         18  and will you please supply the Council with proof of

         19  filing for these outstanding returns.

         20                 MS. DENT: Yes.  The 2002 was filed.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes.

         22                 MS. DENT: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  Thank

         24  you very much.

         25                 Okay, we'll move on to Mr. Morshed
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          2  Alam.  Am I pronouncing that correctly?

          3                 MR. ALAM: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Yes, I know,

          5  resident of Queens. Is a candidate for reappointment

          6  by the Council to the Voter Assistance Commission.

          7  He is eligible to serve for the remainder of a

          8  three- year term that will expire on June 30, 2007.

          9  Mr. Alam has been serving in a holdover capacity

         10  since his present term expired on June 30, 2004.

         11                 Council Member David Weprin would

         12  like to make a statement before you speak.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Yes, I've

         14  known this nominee for many years, he's very active

         15  in all civic and community activities in Queens

         16  County.  He has really been a tremendous asset to me

         17  personally, as well as to most of the public

         18  officials in the area in helping us reach out to new

         19  Americans, to new immigrants, to get involved in the

         20  community.  He is originally a native of Bangladesh

         21  who came over here a number of years ago and really

         22  has gotten very involved, as I mentioned, in

         23  activities and really does a tremendous job.

         24                 I also would just like to disclose

         25  that his daughter use to work for me when I was
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          2  first elected to the Council.  She no longer works

          3  for me. She is now at Stony Brook State University.

          4  I just wanted to disclose that and highly recommend

          5  to my colleagues the reappointment of Mr. Alam who

          6  is an outstanding candidate for the Voter Assistance

          7  Commission.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE; I want to know if

          9  you fired his daughter, that's what I want to know.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: She was not

         11  fired.  She left voluntarily and I'd love to have

         12  her back when she graduates or any other time.

         13                 MR. ALAM: Thank you Councilman.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: I also want to

         15  make a disclosure that Mr. Alam and I served on

         16  Community Board 29 together.  I also have known him

         17  for many years.  He is a person of excellent

         18  character and is truly concerned about not just his

         19  community, but all the communities and all of the

         20  people of the City of New York, especially of the

         21  new immigrant community, in which he has been

         22  working very hard in many different capacities to

         23  give them exposure and opportunities to be involved

         24  in government.  I just want to also congratulate his

         25  reappointment and wish him well.
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          2                 Are there any questions? Council

          3  Member Jackson.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER JACKSON: Thank you Mr.

          5  Chair.  I just wanted to communicate that I am proud

          6  that Mr. Alam is being renominated and hopefully

          7  confirmed as a Member of the Voter Assistance

          8  Commission.  I have know him regarding his

          9  activities in education, not only in Queens, but the

         10  entire City, and he has been an active individual

         11  and someone that I have high regards for and I think

         12  that he is a very honorable and respectful person.

         13  Everything that I know about him is very, very

         14  positive and nothing negative and I think that he

         15  will make an excellent Commissioner to continue on

         16  the Voter Assistance Commission.  Thank you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  With all

         18  of that love being spread, can you raise your right

         19  hand to be sworn in please.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE:  Do you

         21  solemnly swear and affirm the testimony you are

         22  about to give the Committee is the truth, the whole

         23  truth.

         24                 MR. ALAM: Yes.

         25                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state
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          2  your name for the record.

          3                 MR. ALAM: Morshed Alam.

          4                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

          5  witness is sworn.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. Morshed, do

          7  you have any prepared remarks?

          8                 MR. ALAM: I just want to say thanks

          9  to all the Members of the Council for appointing me

         10  as a Member of the Commission and I'll try to do my

         11  best.  I am working between new American communities

         12  and the Voter Assistance Commission. And only

         13  recently we appointed a Exhibitor Director and I

         14  hope she will do her best job and that way we can

         15  keep touch with the community.  We can help people

         16  to register and getting out at the time of election.

         17    Thank you everyone.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay. No other

         19  questions?  I'm going to go to Ms. Kalmus.

         20                 I have a housekeeping issue. Thank

         21  you.  I have a great staff here.  Thank you. We do

         22  have one housekeeping issue regarding Mr. Alam.

         23  You're employed as an Associate Chemist with the New

         24  York City Department of Environmental Protection

         25  since March 2004.
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          2                 You have also been employed by

          3  Council Member Hiram Monserrate as a  Councilmatic

          4  Aid.  Mr. Alam you were advised by DEP that while

          5  working for Council Member Monserrate, you may not

          6  participate in any matters involving DEP.  You were

          7  told that you must excuse yourself from any and all

          8  such matters so as to avoid any potential or even an

          9  appearance of a conflict of interest between your

         10  status as a DEP employee versus your status as a

         11  Councilmatic Aid.  Further, you may not (a) use your

         12  DEP position to obtain any advantage for the Council

         13  Member, his constituents or himself, (b) use DEP

         14  letterhead, resources, personal equipment or

         15  supplies while working for Council Member

         16  Monserrate, prepare or disclose Council business on

         17  DEP time, use or disclose any confidential City

         18  information or engage in any business that may be in

         19  conflict with the proper discharge of your official

         20  duties at DEP.

         21                 Are you aware of these restrictions?

         22                 MR. ALAM: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Do you understand

         24  them?

         25                 MR. ALAM: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Will you continue

          3  to abide by them?

          4                 MR. ALAM: Right.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

          6                 Okay.  I think that's all of my

          7  housekeeping issues. Great. I want to again thank my

          8  staff and we will move on to Ms. Kalmus.  Ms. Jane

          9  Carolyn Kalmus, a resident of Manhattan is also a

         10  candidate for reappointment by the Council to the

         11  Voter Assistance Commission.  She is eligible to

         12  serve for the remainder of a three- year term that

         13  will expire on June 30, 2007.  Ms. Kalmus has been

         14  serving in a holdover capacity since her present

         15  term expired on June 30, 2004.

         16                 Would any Member like to say anything

         17  about Ms. Kalmus?  Going once, going twice, good.

         18                 Can you raise your right hand to be

         19  sworn in please?

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

         21  swear and affirm the testimony you are about give

         22  the Committee is the truth and the whole truth.

         23                 MS. KALMUS: I do.

         24                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         25  your name for the record.
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          2                 MS. KALMUS: My name is Jane Kalmus.

          3                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

          4  witness is sworn.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  I

          6  just want to say that Ms. Kalmus was here recently

          7  and she purported herself to be very aware of all of

          8  the issues regarding the Voters Assistance

          9  Commission and she made an excellent presentation

         10  the last time and has a more than 20- year history

         11  with dealing with all the rights and voter access

         12  and I think it's great that she wants to continue to

         13  serve on the Voter Assistance Commission.  Do you

         14  have any opening remarks, Ms. Kalmus?

         15                 MS. KALMUS: Thank you for those

         16  remarks, Chairman Comrie.

         17                 I just want to add my thanks to this

         18  Committee for reappointing my colleague Morshed

         19  Alam, who has served so eloquently on the

         20  Commission, since we work together.  I have no

         21  opening statement but I do hope that we will talk

         22  about several issues involving the Voter Assistance

         23  Commission and the part that the City Council plays

         24  in its future.

         25                 May I just say, we have, the way the
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          2  Commission is structured, there are six appointees

          3  to the Commission from the Council; however, there

          4  are two positions that have been unfilled for many,

          5  many years.  I urge whoever is interested in seeing

          6  to it that the Borough Boards of Brooklyn and the

          7  Bronx, please tend to us, we need your

          8  representation on the Commission.  We are struggling

          9  with four- members, where there should be six.  It

         10  interferes with our policies, it interferes with our

         11  ability to vote on issues that involve every

         12  registered citizen of the City of New York.  I hope

         13  that you will hear my plea and act accordingly.

         14  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you Ms.

         16  Kalmus. Council Member Provenzano.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Hi, I

         18  happen to be head of the Bronx delegation.

         19                 MS. KALMUS: I'm so glad you're here.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: We've been

         21  trying, let me tell you. We've had a couple of

         22  candidates and I certainly appreciate your passion

         23  and hopefully within the next couple of months we

         24  will get a candidate.  We have actually been trying.

         25                 MS. KALMUS: Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: We've had

          3  a few that did not -- well were just were not up to

          4  snuff when it came to investigation.

          5                 MS. KALMUS: Yes.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: But, I

          7  appreciate your concern and I thank you.

          8                 MS. KALMUS: Thank you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

         10  Reyna.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: May I just add

         12  to that.  We did actually have someone on it for

         13  awhile, Mr. Castro.

         14                 MS. KALMUS: Yes, but there was a

         15  conflict --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

         17                 MS. KALMUS: -- Because of being a

         18  District Leader, had to choose between the two

         19  positions.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right.

         21                 MS. KALMUS: I for one felt that he

         22  chose the wrong position, but that's just my

         23  position.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Right, but

         25  we're working on it.
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          2                 MS. KALMUS: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Council Member

          4  Reyna.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Ms. Kalmus, I

          6  just wanted to say a few words --

          7                 MS. KALMUS: Please.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: -- Expressing

          9  our gratitude, letting us know that it is very

         10  important for us from the Brooklyn delegation to pay

         11  some immediate attention to appointing someone to

         12  the Commission.

         13                 MS. KALMUS: Yes.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: And Council

         15  Member Clarke and myself, belonging to that

         16  delegation, will soon thereafter this meeting go and

         17  express that same concern to the rest of our

         18  colleagues.

         19                 MS. KALMUS: That's music to my ears.

         20  That's wonderful.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: All right.  Thank

         22  you Ms. Kalmus.  We'll move on to Ms. Veronica

         23  Villanueva, a resident of Queens, who is a candidate

         24  for reappointment by the Council to Equal Employment

         25  Practices Commission.  She is eligible to serve for
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          2  the remainder of a four- year term that began on

          3  July 1, 2004, and will expire on June 30, 2008.  Ms.

          4  Villanueva has been serving in a holdover capacity

          5  since her previous term expired on June 30, 2004.

          6  Can you raise your right hand and be sworn in

          7  please?

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Do you solemnly

          9  swear and confirm the testimony you are about to

         10  give the Committee is the truth and the whole truth?

         11                 MS. VILLANUEVA: I do.

         12                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Please state

         13  your name for the record.

         14                 MS. VILLANUEVA: My name is Veronica

         15  Villanueva.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Thank you.  The

         17  witness is sworn.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: We have also been

         19  joined by Mr. Abe May, Executive Director of Equal

         20  Employment Practices Commission.  Good morning and

         21  thank you for coming.

         22                 Do you have any prepared remarks Ms.

         23  Villanueva?

         24                 MS. VILLANUEVA: I do not Council

         25  Member. I just wanted to thank the Council for the
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          2  opportunity to be reappointed as Commissioner of

          3  Equal Employment Practices Commission.  I have

          4  really enjoyed the work I have done there in the

          5  last year.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Okay.  You want

          7  to tell the Members on what you understand your

          8  functions and duties of the office are and how

          9  you've been helpful since you have been there.

         10                 MS. VILLANUEVA: I believe that at

         11  this point in time because of the resignation of the

         12  Mayoral appointee recently that I am the only

         13  Commissioner who has been working in employment and

         14  labor related issues who is on the Commission at

         15  this point     in time.  And I believe that that's

         16  helpful to the Commission in terms of making

         17  decisions when the time comes whether to approve the

         18  Commission's decisions to close out investigations.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.  Any

         20  questions for Ms. Villanueva?  Seeing none, then I

         21  want to thank you for your decision to continue to

         22  serve the City.  And I want to thank all of the

         23  candidates for their decision to continue to serve

         24  on the various committees that they are being

         25  reappointed to today.
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          2                 I want to let Ms. Kalmus know that

          3  it's very difficult to find people that are going to

          4  serve at a non- paid capacity. But, we will endeavor

          5  to work with all of the delegations to try to help them

          6  to find people that want to do that. Especially

          7  when, you know, some people object to, well I leave

          8  that one.                It's difficult to find

          9  people who want to serve the City and also work a

         10  full- time job.  You know I really appreciate what

         11  Mr. Olcott is doing, where he is actually deferring

         12  some of his partnership salary.  I mean that's very

         13  unusual and it should be commended for his decision

         14  to do that because you know, he's a partner in a

         15  firm and other Members that have come here are

         16  actually deferring part of their salary to serve on

         17  various Commissions.  I think that this just shows

         18  their great New Yorkers. I want to congratulate all

         19  of you for wanting to serve on your various Boards

         20  and we will be voting.  We don't have a quorum do

         21  we?  Oh yes, we have two votes and we have six

         22  members here.  Yes, we have other members here so we

         23  can call the vote and hold the vote open so that we

         24  can allow you folks to finish the rest of your day.

         25  I want to thank you for coming in this morning.
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          2  Again I want to apologize for members being all over

          3  the place, but again you were all highly

          4  recommended.  Most of you have previously served in

          5  that capacity and have done a very honorable job and

          6  we want to thank you.  If you could call the vote

          7  please?

          8                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Comrie

          9                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Aye on all.

         10                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Provenzano

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PROVENZANO: Aye on

         12  all.

         13                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Reyna.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER REYNA: Congratulations

         15  to all the appointees. Aye on all.

         16                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Clarke.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Aye on all.

         18                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: Weprin.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER WEPRIN: Aye on all.

         20                 COUNSEL TO COMMITTEE: By a vote of

         21  seven in the affirmative, none in the negative, all

         22  of the matters are adopted. Please sign the reports

         23  and the roll will be kept open.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON COMRIE: Thank you.

         25                 That ends the meeting part of the
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          2  Committee, the roll will be held open.  We will

          3  immediately start our Finance Committee Meeting in

          4  this room.  Members please turn in your book.

          5                 (Meeting concluded at 11:40 a.m.)
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